NOTICE
SPECIAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Aldermen of the City of Seligman, Missouri, will
conduct a Special meeting beginning at 6:30 P.M. on May 5th, 2025, at City Hall, 29144 Main
Street, Seligman, MO 65745.

The tentative agenda of the meeting includes:
AGENDA

Employee Complaints / Grievance Received against West Ward Alderman Michael Lamb (this is
the second attempt for this meeting)

Attorney General response to complaints received 5/1/25

Call for the impeachment of Alderman Michael Lamb with Board vote per RSMo 79.240

Proposed ordinances and/or resolutions to be discussed and/or acted upon at any meeting which were made known
1o the city clerk prior to the agenda posting deadline are available at City Hall. News Media may obtain copies of
this notice by contacting the city clerk at Seligman City Hall, 29144 Main St., Seligman, MO 65745, 417-662-3600
phone, 833-277-7002 fux

Posted May 1st, 2025 at City Hall 3:21pm by /7 (i




Statement of events — Michael Lamb Building Permit

12/3 - Mr. Lamb stopped in to City Hall to fill out his building permit application, once
complete he stated he would be in later to pay the application fee, while we were
discussing his building | stated several items:

“Are the pins available?”

“| feel like there is an issue here, | will have to read code to recall the issue and | will let him
know”
“It will be next week before | can go on site”

Mr. Lamb made no argument to the discussion above in person, he stated he would like for
the building to be up before Christmas.

(At this time there was no mention of a pour date for the concrete or delivery of the building,
Matt Phillips was present for this discussion.)

12/4 - Mr. Lamb dropped off the check for the permit and Sarah issued him a receipt.

12/7 - When arriving home late in the evening | noticed some dirt work had been done.
12/9 - When leaving for work | noticed the forms for the pad had been placed, 7:30am.
Around 1pm Mike Avers text me that the concrete had been poured.

12/10 — Not available to inspect today, | have a training class until noon, then after council
work.

12/11 - Training until noon, 12:30pm - Inspection day, Mr. Lamb came out after | had
started hunting for pins, | was having a hard time locating any pins on the North or South
end of the property, he mentioned there was a pin next the the NE power pole (information
provided by the previous owner) but no pin or marker was available. | mentioned noticing
the pad was already poured before the inspection had taken place, he replied that the
concrete was a week early to his surprise. | mentioned the front yard, he had removed the
corner post of the front yard fence and placed the pad in the front yard, he did not agree, |
told him | would research it a bit more, and | started measuring and running lines from other
options.

| pulled a line from the existing fence on the North East side to the South East fence
and staked a line.

| pulled measurement from the center of the road to 30’, staked the lines.

Page 1 0of 8



| pulled measurements from the side of the utility pole that was mentioned by the
previous owner, there was no good connecting point for me to use with this
reference.

| pulled measurements from the West side existing barb wire fence on the North
side and again as close to the pad, measuring 168’ and placing markers. | had little
faith in this method after measuring for a bit, but it was close to measuring from the
center of the road.

| text Mr. Lamb to discuss this outside, we walked around a bit while | explained my
measurement issues, he mentioned calling the electric company and they stated they only
install poles on the property line, based on my measurements | did not believe this to be
true. | told him the closest measurement | can reference is the rear fence, that means the
setback was a couple feet into his concrete pad. He insisted that the electric poles are on
the property line and that is where he measured from to start. He asked me if he needed to
move the pad, | replied that | am not telling him he has to do anything. Further into our
discussion about the property lines he asked if he needed to get a survey, | replied thatl am
not telling him he has to do that, but | did ask you at the time you filled out the application if
the pins were available, you replied you weren’t sure, | told him | would try to find
something on site.

| had to leave for a bit and later returned on site.

Mr. Lamb came out still talking about the power poles and that the lines | was pulling were
not correct, he stated the building was going up on Monday and he needed this done. |
talked more about the front yard and the fence that was removed, he still did not agree and
said that code needed to be changed. | did warn that he cannot build without a permit, he
replied saying the building was going up on Monday, | warned his that he would be in
violation of the City code and subject to a citation for violation of City code, he replied that
the building is going up regardless.

I concluded the onsite inspection saying that | could not approve the permit since the front
yard setback could not be identified and agreed upon, further the way City code reads, his
frontyard is an issue. | left the property.

| contacted Mike Avers in his Mayor capacity to explain my day, also Brenda McKinney in
her P&Z capacity.

12/12 - 7:45am | started receiving texts and calls from Mr. Lamb, he asked if he was alright
with the setback or if he needed to alter the pad, nothing had changed from the discussion
the day before, the same issues | mentioned were still present. | spent a lot of my day

Page 2 of 8



reading code in depth for an answer or other option. | did ask about roof pitch in an attempt
to find a solution, | was met with resistance.

| left work at noon for a doctor visit.
| spoke to Mike Avers about this, he was contacted by Mr. Lamb as well.
Mike Avers text me that the pad had been chopped in the front and extended in the rear.

12/13 - | refused to answer Mr. Lambs phone calls until | came to work. He started off
asking if he was good to go since moving the concrete pad, | told him nothing changed
since we could not come to an agreement on the property line, and the front yard was still
anissue. He said well then, | have been reading the City code and there are a lot of issues,
the marijuana code does not match State RSMo, and the blackburn zoning changes were
illegally done, I’'m not going to let this go. He then requested again to be on the agenda for
the P&Z meeting to get the language changed, | told him he already was.

Later this day Mike and | met on site to discuss the different methods | used to try and
discern the lot line, Darla came out and we tried to explain what we had come up with, |
asked for the drawings of the building to be put up as | was exploring alternative options to
solve the hangup, she was not comfortable sharing this due to personal information on the
document, our casual conversation was not received well and Darla obviously took offense
to something that was said, | told her we would be leaving the property now and we left.

Later this day | was present for a phone call between Mike Avers and Mr. Lamb. Mr. Lamb
did text the building plans, unfortunately that did not help me in the hunt to find a solution.

12/16 - Zoning meeting, this was a waste of time for everyone present, Mr. Lamb should
never have brought this to the meeting asking for changes to be made to solve an issue he
had with code. | stated that there was nothing that could be done in this meeting to change
City code in order to help his situation, He replied that the commission could make a
motion and the Mayor could approve that change, | will touch on this later*. While
discussing the issues | had with the inspection, the lot line and how | tried to discern it was
called into question, Mr. Corn asked if we have used the R/W measurements before, and
yes we had, the issue was Mr. Lamb was not accepting of this measurement or any other
measurement | attempted....later | asked point blank if he would accept the R/W
measurement from the center of the road, Mr. Lamb said he would at that point. The front
yard was still an issue as code reads “No accessory structures or uses shall be located
within a required or established front yard”. The fence was intact and present when he
applied for the permit, Donna asked if Mr. Lamb could submit a new application and move
on since the fence is no longer present, while this does not seem like a the right thing to do,
I did not see an issue with Mr. Lamb withdrawing his original application and filling out a

Page 3 0of 8



new application. He stated that the building crew would be on site the next morning and
asked if the inspection could be done first thing.

Video footage of this meeting available as evidence.

12/17 — Mike Avers and myself met on site to measure the R/W which had been previously
marked with stakes, the ground was painted indicating the lot line and then the 25’ setback
was also marked, the fence was not present and more fence was being removed. | staked
the permit and concluded the inspection.

Observation - Improper and unethical conduct of a City Alderman, attempted persuasion
of the Mayor, Zoning administrator and Zoning Commission to violate City Code for his own
personal gain:

Mayor persuasion — Since Mr. Lamb did not agree with my conclusion he contacted the
Mayor multiple time to persuade him to override the decision and force me to approve his
application. Mr. Lamb also enlisted Ron Corn (Alderman) to discuss this issue with the
Mayor. He attempted to coerce the Mayor into overruling the decision of the zoning
administrator, of which the Mayor does not have the authority to do so, which violates his
oath of office.

Zoning Administrator — After | stated my issues yet again on the phone 12/13, Mr. Lamb said
he would not let this go....he had been reading code and found a lot of issues that need to
be fixed, the marijuana code does not match the state code, and that the commission
approving the Blackburn zoning change was done illegally. | told him that had nothing to do
with the situation at hand. Mr. Lamb stated to me that the building was going up
regardless....this would violate City code, this violates his oath of office.

Zoning Commission — Mr. Lamb requested to be on the agenda to discuss issues with code
that directly effected his application, he was requesting changes to take place in order to
move his application along. He was told there wasn’t anything that could be done at the
meeting, but argued that these items needed to be corrected immediately, and that all the
commission had to do was vote on the changes and the Mayor could sign them into law. He
further went on to argue with members that understood the process for changing the
regulations is to propose a change to be voted on, Mr. Lamb continued to argue. Decisions
of the zoning administrator can be appealed to the Board of Adjustments, Mr. Lamb
attempted to persuade the zoning commission to change regulations immediately, even
though the process for amending code is clearly outlined in code, which violates his oath of
office. This is also unethical to seek a change and argue a change to regulations to suit his
needs.

Page 4 of 8



Conclusion - Mr. Lamb is willing to violate City code as stated above, and unethical
behavior has been observed by multiple City Officials.

Brian Nichols

Follow up:

1/13/25 6pm

| passed out this statement to each City official, Mr. Lamb started to argue the facts
mentioned in the statemen, Alderman McKinney instructed Mr. Lamb to let everyone read it
before discussing it.

After discussing the events with raised voices for nearly an hour, the discussion was settled
with Mr. Lamb agreeing to bring his statement of events to the next meeting for discussion.

Later that evening after the meeting Mr. Lamb text Mayor Avers saying that should have
been discussed in closed session.

Video footage of this meeting available as evidence.

1/17/25 11:36am Mayor Avers text me to call him, I did, he mentioned Alderman Corn
requested a meeting with him on site at DD park to put this thing with Mr. Lamb to rest.
I had no further communications with Mayor Avers for over a week as | was on vacation
from 1/19-1/26.

2/10/25 during office hours when Mayor Avers was in City Hall | asked him directly what the
outcome of his meeting with Alderman Corn, he said Ron just wanted to end the situation.

6pm Meeting

Alderman Lamb started off requesting the mention of the statement at the last meeting be
removed from the minutes since it was not on the agenda, (Department report discussion
is on every agenda since this is the time to question City personnel about event that
happen the Month prior, the topic of zoning administrator position and recent events was
listed as an item for discussion prior to the meeting in accordance with the MO sunshine

Page 5 0of 8



law) Back and forth discussion resumed about the events and discussion from the last
meeting, Mr. Lamb again arguing that it should be done in closed session..... | stated that
he had no problem with calling me out in front of multiple people at a public planning and
zoning meeting, discussing my performance as zoning administrator and the gall of me to
tell a citizen that “l do not work for you Steve” after being asked why | didn’t come help him
with a private business project....The whole matter has already been made public. The
argument continued. This discussion concluded with Mr. Lamb agreeing to bring his
statement to the next meeting.

Video footage of this meeting available as evidence.

3/10/25 Mr. Lamb was not in person for this meeting, he attended the meeting via Webex
on a tablet. When the topic came up he was asked for his statement, he replied saying “he
was told we were dropping that, he has left it alone and was not committing anything and
was leaving it alone”. The Mayor told him he believes there was a ethics violation and he
was asked two months not to get his letter in, Alderman McKinney stated to Mr. Lamb that
there seems to be discussions happening outside of the Board meetings between three
people and that needs to stop, the discussion needs to be at the meetings. She asked him
again for his statement since he does not agree with my report of the issue. Mr. Lamb said
what are you going to do when there is an ethics violation on part of Brian, because that will
fall back on you as the Mayor, and do you really want to waste the Cities money. Mr. Lamb
said again that he will bring a statement next month and we will have a guest as well.

Video footage of this meeting available as evidence.

3/17/25 Lamb dropped off his resignation letter for his Alderman Position and seat on the
planning and zoning commission. This was accepted by the zoning commission later that
evening.

3/27/25 Lamb retracted his resignation for the Alderman position. The MML was consulted
about this.

4/2/25 Office discussion with the Chief lead to a discussion about Mr. Lamb calling the City
attorney to discuss illegal conduct on my part and of the mayor, at this time no information
is available. The Mayor was notified of this in person.

4/7/25 After court finished Avers and Weber (City Attorney) came over to City Hall to
discuss the conversation she had with Lamb and his accusations:

Minutes are gone, they don’t exist.

Council Books are gone, they have been deleted.

Page 6 of 8



| took this opportunity to explain to Weber about the council books on OneNote, there is no
requirement to retain these items.....however | simply move old meeting to a file with the
corresponding year as not to congest the current year book, the larger the book the slower
itisto load.....and itis very apparent that books are not looked at before the meetings.

| also detailed my process of filing ordinances and minutes in the appropriate hard cover
binder, minutes are also held in digital form on dropbox (cloud file storage).

Prior to this matter being brought up, | was not asked for any of these documents or asked
any questions about this material, had | been the answer would have been simple and
would not have required the City Attorney to be bothered, it is unclear if the City will be
charged for the conversation Mr. Lamb had with the City Attorney, Mr. Lamb does not have
the authority to to authorize the expense.

4/14/25

| have a recording of this meeting from multiple cameras, multiple sunshine law violations
occurred on part of Lamb (documented and reported to the secretary of state), as well
personnel being berated by Lamb.

7:52pm Lamb asked if the Board still needed a statement from him or did you drop all that,
was that revoked or what happened.

Avers said we are still waiting for your statement.

Lamb replied with it wasn’t on the agenda. (it has been on the agenda since January and
mentioned at each meeting)

Lamb passed out his statement.

McKinney said with your statement the way you wrote it, “Mistakes were made, but the
permit was issued, so the matter has been resolved” The Board can accept Brian’s
statement as true.

Lamb replied you could, but there are no ethics violations in there and furthermore there
are items that happened that probably should not have. | am willing to let it all go, but if its
not let go then he is prepared to move forward, but hoping this would all be let go, or Brian
could retract his statement.

Video footage of this meeting available as evidence.
4/21/25

Mayor Avers asked me to reach out to each Alderman about a special meeting on 4/23 —
6pm to discuss the statements and grievance reported against Lamb, | received
confirmation from Lamb that he would attend virtually, a link was emailed to him, and

Page 7 of 8



again on 4/23 since he had not confirmed the Webex invite previously sent. The only
Alderman that had not responded to my multiple attempts was Alderman Pratt.

4/23/25

Alderman Mckinney and Mayor Avers were the only members to show up, no contact from
Pratt, the Webex link was not responded to on part of Lamb, and Tanis had a medical
emergency and was not able to attend.

4/24/25

Mayor Avers asked me to contact the City Attorney for help with a Board of Impeachment
hearing for Lamb.

Page 8 of 8



(X<

TS

J0KRJ\ ‘SIOAY [PRUDIN

"v20¢ ‘11ady Jo Aep (] SIY) paxijje 03a1oy A1) pres Jo [eas a3esodiod ayj yim puey AW Iopun NAAID

'9z0¢ [11dy ur uonoo[y redotunpy 3xou 9y}
[mun +zg0g ‘wg [Mdy uruurdaq sIeoi omJ, JO UL} 9} J10] Uew3I[oS JO A} oY) JO UQULIOP[Y PIEA\ IS9A SE quIeT [9BYDIN
UOISSTW WO ‘UBwW3I[OS JO A1) 93} JO JOABIA SB PIISoA oW Ul AJLIOYINE Y3 AQ ‘Op ‘SISAY [9RUIIN | ‘FIOJTITHL ‘MON

‘20130 Jo yyeo o) 3une) Aq Aynp 1oy /SIy PI[[YINg
sey pue A1red jo L&quno) ‘Uew3I[ag Jo A1) 9} JO USULIOP[Y PIBA\ 1S9\ SE UI UIOMS U9( Sey quie] [QBYUDIA ‘SVANTHM

's's ‘uewdI[eg Jo A1) ‘Arreg jo £yuno) ‘LINOSSIA JO 91e1S

NOISSININOD

B O O b b o ok b o R o o T A A Y T T L L LR T
"SI9[D A1) ‘S[OYDIN UBLIg ‘US)ILIM 9A0(E ABpP U} ‘LINOSSIJA ‘UBWSII[OS JO A1) 93} JO [B9S PuUe PUBY AW SSIUIIM

"$20g ‘TIdy Jo £ep Uig SIY} U0 W 210j3q 0} UIOMS PUE PaqLIdsqng

J)

"P9109[2 seMm [ YOIYM JI0J ‘LINOSSIA ‘UBWII[OS
Jo A1) 9y} JO UQULISP[Y PIBM ISOM JO 901JO 9] Ul J[IYM J[OSAWI UBIWIP A[[NJYITe] [[IM [ Jey) PUEB ‘LINOSSI ‘UrwSI[og
Jo A1) 93 JO s9ouBUIPI(O 29U} PuB SSB[) YLINOY SY) Jo SanI0 Jurjodje 23e)s SIY} Jo sme [[e Jo suorsiaoid oy} pue ‘Linos
-STJA JO 91818 9y) JO UONNINSUO0) 9y} pue $31B1S Pajiun ayj} jo uonninsuo) ay3 jroddns [[im [ 3y} PUB USULIIPIY PIEM
1S9\ JO 301JO 93 10 me] Aq paqriosaid suoneoyirenb ayj [fe ssassod [ jey) ULIJe I0 Jeams AJUUWIS[0S Op ‘qUIET [9BUDIA ‘I

's's ‘uewdI[ag Jo A1) ‘Arreg jo A3uno)) ‘LINOSSI| JO 93€)S

dOI440 40 HILVO




I, Michael Lamb, hereby resign my positions held on City of Seligman Planning and Zoning
board, and City of Seligman Alderman board effective immediately; 17 March 2025.

ik L



I, Michael Lamb, hereby retract my resignation for City of Seligman Alderman board effective 27
March 2025.




April 14, 2025

Mistakes and errors were made; but obviously it has been resolved since | was provided the
building permit and the building has been completed.

| am proud to continue to serve the citizens of the community, and will continue to have their
best interest in mind.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this statement and for us to move past this issue,
allowing for a constructive positive working relationship.

Michael Lamb

City of Seligman West side Alderman



Missouri Ethics Commission (MEC) Office Use:
PO Box 1370, Jefferson City, MO 65102, (800) 392-8660 www.mec.mo.gov

Official Complaint FOrm isccion: 10957 130.054 aswio, & mo const

THIS FORM MUST BERETURNED BY MAIL OR HAND-DELIVERED
FAXED COPIES OR EMAILS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED

INDIVIDUAL BRINGING COMPLAINT: (must be a natural person)

DATE OF COIVIPLAlNT:3/16/25 NAME: (First & Last) Brlan N IChOIS TITLE OF OFFICE HELD OR SOUGHT (if applicable):
pooRessireared 27947 Walnut Street ""bwnathome@gmail.com

CITY, STATE & ZIP: (reqUired)SeIigman, MO 65745 COUNTY: Barry
\(NORK P)HONE: |('|OME P)HONE: ((:ELL PH)ONE4173426554

The Commission will send a copy of this complaint, which includes the name of the person bringing the complaint, to
the organization(s), committee(s), or individual(s) against whom the complaint is brought.
INDIVIDUAL(S) AND/OR ORGANIZATION(S) OR COMMITTEE(S) AGAINST WHOM COMPLAINT BROUGHT:
(Please limit filing to those individuals and/or entities against whom the specific complaint is alleged. File separate complaints if alleging

violations of a similar nature against separate and distinct individuals/organizations/committees/entities. Use additional pages if necessary.)

NAME: . TITLE OF OFFICE HELD OR SOUGHT (if applicable):
Michael Lamb West Ward Alderman
ADDRESS: (required) . EMAIL:
27975 Main Street
CITY, STATE & ZIP: (required) . COUNTY: DATE OF ELECTION: (if applicable)
Seligman, MO 65745 Barry April 2024
WORK PHONE: HOME PHONE: CELL PHONE:
C A O 7274219289
NAME: TITLE OF OFFICE HELD OR SOUGHT (if applicable):
ADDRESS: (required) EMAIL:
CITY, STATE & ZIP: (required) COUNTY: DATE OF ELECTION: (if applicable)
WORK PHONE: HOME PHONE: CELL PHONE:

() ( ) )

VERIFICATION BY OATH OR AFFIRMATION

This complaint shall be sworn to under penalty of perjury.
STATE OF MISSOURI
COUNTY OF Barry
, Brian Nichols

(Complainant Name)
certify under penalty of perjury that the information containedin this complaint is complete, true, and correct, to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

being duly sworn upon oath and affirmation legally administered,

Complainant Signature

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of ,

My Commission Expires:

Notary Public Signature

(MEC-1/25) Page 1of 2


http://www.mec.mo.gov/

Please check one or more boxes next to the area(s) which you believe this complaint concerns:
O1)  The requirements imposed on lobbyists contained in Sections 105.470 to 105.478, RSMo;
2) The financial interest disclosure requirements contained in Sections 105.483 to 105.492, RSMo;

O
O 3)  The campaign finance disclosure requirements contained in Chapter 130, RSMo and the Missouri Constitution;
O

4) Article VIII, Section 23, of the Missouri Constitution (complaints relating to campaign finance can only be filed against a
candidate within 60 days prior to the primary election until after the general election in which the candidate is running
but not within the 15 days prior to the election);

5) The conflict of interest laws contained in Sections 105.450 to 105.467, RSMo, and Section 171.181, RSMo;

6) Any code of conduct promulgated by any department, division or agency of state government, or by state
institutions of higher education, or by executive order;

(|

& 7) The provisions of the Constitution or state statute or order, ordinance or resolution of any political subdivision relating
to the official conduct of officials or employees of the state and political subdivisions.

State in your own words the facts and actions which prompted you to make this complaint.
Attach any documents that support this complaint. Include relevant dates, times, and the names and
contact information of other persons whom you believe have knowledge of the facts.

= no Are any of the matters alleged by you the subject of civil or criminal litigation?
O ves If yes, please provide the county, and case number, if known.

The space provided below is not intended to limit your statement of facts. Please use additional pages if necessary.

Full report and more attached. Video footage of each meeting is available.

In breif, Alderman Lamb's building permit request was in violation of City Code.

First Lamb contacted the Mayor about the permit issues in an attempt

to overrule the zoning administrator decision on a building permit, second was to enlist

another Alderman to discuss the matter with the Mayor and attempt to persuade the

Mayor to violate City code, City code is clear that an appeal goes to the Board of Adjustments.

Lamb also threatened to investigate employee actions and his finding would blow back on the Mayor.

Lamb requested to be on the agenda at the planning and zoning commission which

he was a member, he was appointed by the Board of Alderman to hold the Alderman

seat, he started off discussing his building permit that had not yet been approved, he

attempted to persuade the zoning commission to make changes to the code immediately

so he could put up his new building the next day. He argued that the zoning board

could make a motion to change the code issues and the Mayor could sign them into

law, he was told multiple times that the zoning commission has nothing to do with the

matter, and code cannot be changed quickly enough to resolve his conflict.

(MEC-1/25) Page 2 of 2



pOLI

¢e) SELIGMAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

Chief Matt Phillips 29144 Main Street,

Seligman, Mo 65745
0) 417.662.3600

I, Kevin M Phillips, in the full compacity as Chief of Police for the City of Seligman formally submit a
grievance against Alderman Michael Lamb. Below | will list the reasonings for submitting my grievance
against Lamb that occurred during the Board of Alderman meeting on 4/14/2025

1.

10.

Lamb violated RSMo 610.020 by speaking on items not on the agenda, specifically the Chief of
Police and City Administrator position.
Lamb violated RSMo 106.273 for the following reasonings:

a. Lamb failed to provide written notice of the intent of removal or suspension.

b. Lamb failed to provide written notice of the date time and location of said meeting.

c. Lamb failed to provide a set of allegations against the chief including a statement of
facts supporting said allegations.

d. Lamb failed to provide “just cause” of removal. Just cause meaning of the 6 allowed
reasons for removal by State Statute.

Lamb stated that it was important to the State whether the position was appointed or a contact
position. RSMo 106.273 states a chief is “any nonelected chief law enforcement officer of any
political subdivision” and the process of removal or suspension apply regardless of appointment
or contract. The terms of a contract cannot override state statute.

Lamb suggested that the city “only extend the contract of the chief of police for 30 days, in
violation of RSMO 106.273.

Lamb stated | was “flying off the handle” because | was stating specific State Statute and |
wished to submit a grievance against him. This act was in clear violation of Policy 313.3.2
Retaliation which states”

a. Retaliation is treating a person differently or engaging in acts of reprisal or intimidation
against the person because the person has engaged in protected activity, filed a charge
of discrimination, participated in an investigation, or opposed discriminatory practice.
Retaliation will not be tolerated.

Lamb then again violated RSMo 610.020 and started talking about previous minutes claiming
they were gone, which was not on the agenda.

Lamb again violated RSMo 610.020 attempting to bring up the City Administrator position,
which was not on the agenda.

Lamb suggested that the City Administrator position was “still part of new business” again
violating RSMo 610.020.

Lamb then violated RSMo 610.020, 610.021.3, and policy 1010.6.2 for personal complaints.
Lamb in open session spoke claiming he didn’t need the “hostility”. | object to his use of the
word “hostility”, during the time of explaining the policy and state statues, | did not yell, scream
or act in a way that would alarm someone. | have previously observed lamb during council
meetings, yell, scream, and beat his hands on the table, which | would clarify has hostile.
Lamb violated RSMo 610.020, again, by bringing up city ordinances and the lack of the
ordinances being online, an item that was not on the agenda.

% 4/20/25



4/20/2025

Brian Nichols
27947 Walnut Street
Seligman, MO 65745

Dear Mayor and Board of Aldermen,

| felt it necessary to present a recap of the April 14" meeting minutes and noted violations
on part of multiple employees during the meeting, all of which was recorded, | fear there
will be turmoil in the near future if these issues are not acted upon.

Department Reports:

Mr. Lamb disrupted the agenda by discussing his need to have items available on the
website and council book, further wanting an explanation of the discussion from the last
zoning meeting which he submitted items to be discussed, then proceeded to discuss
those item across the room with McKinney....

These items were not on the agenda and disrupted the meeting, Avers attempted to
redirect the meeting but was further interrupted asking to have the items previously
submitted be added again and discussed. Avers asked McKinney to add the items and go
over each item for consideration at the next meeting.

Old Business / Salary:

During the discussion of this bill, Lamb disrupted the agenda and began to discuss
complaints he had received from his constituents about the police department, Matt
attempted to inform Lamb about the laws governing complaints and how they should be
handled.

These items were not on the agenda and disrupted the meeting, Avers attempted to
redirect the meeting but was further interrupted by Lamb talking about the vehicle letters.

New Business: (Election results, Oath of Office, Mayor Pro Tem, City Attorney, Municipal

Court Judge, Account Signers)

After the discussion about the judge appointment Lamb stated we have another
appointment, Chief of Police, and began to discuss the issue back and forth with Avers.
Lamb made the suggestion that the Board extend Matts term for 30 days. Matt announced
that the discussion needs to stop and that he will be contacting the Chief’s association, he
further instructed Lamb to read RSMo. (Information has been available in the books)
Discussion back and forth between Lamb, Matt and Avers continued, Matt announced he
would like to file a grievance. Lamb stated he wasn’t trying to get Matt fired, but seeking



answers. Everyone present witnessed Lamb berate Matt two times, “getting bent out of
shape”, “flying off the handle”.

At this point Lamb started to discuss the meeting minutes and previous council meeting
books, Avers showed proof of the items existence and attempted to redirect the meeting.

Lamb then wanted to discuss Brian’s contract, Avers and Matt attempted to resolve the
matter by quoting the answers received from the City attorney. Avers attempted to redirect
the meeting.

Lamb turned to Matt and again berated his saying “in the future | don’t need the hostility”.
Matt replied with his reason behind being physically upset, it is his belief that there is a plot
to have him removed from office. Avers attempted to redirect the meeting and discuss
code enforcement.

Lamb interrupted the meeting to discuss having City code put on the website. He further
stated that when he gets attitude that doesn’t help anything, he then berated Matt saying
“orif | got attitude”, then he has a problem.

Lamb further interrupted the meeting to talk about the meetings being recorded, Avers
discussed the matter with Lamb and attempted to redirect the meeting.

These items were not on the agenda and disrupted the meeting.

Avers asked for items to discuss next month:

Lamb requested web access to the previous council books, and began to talk about why
they are needed and how he would use them.

This item was not on the agenda and disrupted the meeting.

Just after the meeting adjourned, but before anyone but Kyle left, Lamb turned to Matt and
said “in the future Matt, if you would just talk to me directly, that would have been a lot
better, | wasn’t trying to attack you”. Matt replied by saying “ | have been clear | was done
talking about this”.

Brian Nichols



SELIGMAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

Office: 417.662.3600 Dispatch: 417.847-4911 Fax: 417.662.3718
29144 Main Street, Seligman Missouri, 65745

Matt Phillips, Chief of Police

5/1/2025

Dear Mayor Michael Avers,

| am writing this letter to inform you and to report that | feel Alderman Michael Lamb
has violated Ordinance 15-07, specifically the anti-retaliation. | further believe that
Lamb has violated Missouri Revised State Statute 105.055. | feel that as a result of
filing a grievance on 4/21/2025, Lamb has retaliated against me for my role in the
protected act of filing a grievance, reporting his numerous violations of law, policy,
ordinances and ethics. | believe that Lamb is attempting the removal of my position
due to my grievance. | further believe that Lamb has retaliated against Brian Nichols
for reporting similar acts conducted by Lamb. | believe that part of Lambs request for
closed session is a direct retaliation against me. | believe that Lamb will speak of the
removal of my position in direct violation of Missouri Revised State Statute 106.273.
As stated in 106.273.2.1 a notice to me must be given with no fewer than 10 days
prior to the meeting “at which his or her removal will be considered.” | previously filed
a grievance against Lamb for this same action and he is repeating it again. | am also
notifying you that | have intent to notify the Missouri Chief of Police Association for
representation for this matter.

Tha ou,
Kevin M. Phillips it
Chief of Police 2



. Sunshine Law Violation ANDREW BAILEY ago.mo.gov

Complaint Form MISSOURI ATTORNEY GENERAL 800-392-8222

The Attorney General is charged with enforcing the Missouri Sunshine Law.
To ensure that government is open, the Attorney General reviews complaints regarding potential Sunshine Law violations and, in
certain cases, takes legal action. However, please understand that the Attorney General cannot act as your attorney but
represents the state’s interests in ensuring that public meetings and records are open to the extent provided by law.

If you would like to file a sunshine law violation complaint, please complete and mail this form to:
Missouri Attorney General’s Office « Sunshine Complaint Unit - PO.Box 899 - Jefferson City, MO 65102

Your Information

YOUR NAME r:lBrs:.Ian LaNstiChO|S h\/I/I\/
i 27947 Walnut Street Seligman MO 65745 Barry
S City State Zip County

Sk brian.nichols@seligmanmo.com

PRIMARY PHONE NO. (Ll z D3]]z ]-[e][5][5][«]
secoNpARY PHONENO. ([ | 1T DI -]

Public Body Information

St oF ruslicaopy. 20ard of Aldermen Gk officials@seligmanmo.com
anpress 29144 Main Street Seligman MO 65745 Barry
Street City State Zip County
i ATTORNEY FOR
rah Weber
CONTACT PERSON Michael Avers PUBLIC BODY (F knowN) Sara ebe

pHoNENO.  ([4][1][7 D[3][2][2][e][&][2][¢]

Complaint Information

NATURE OF COMPLAINT [ |Meeting [ JRecord [ _|Both meeting and record
pescrise compLant lderman Lamb kept discussing items that were not on the agenda

at the April 14th Regular Board of Aldermen meeting

HAVE YOU CONTACTED A PRIVATE ATTORNEY OR @Yes ONo IF YES, HAS THE ATTORNEY TAKEN OYes ONo
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY ABOUT THIS MATTER? ACTION ON YOUR BEHALF?

IF ATTORNEY HAS TAKEN ACTION, DESCRIBE ACTION TAKEN TO DATE AND WHETHER LITIGATION HAS BEEN FILED.

IF LITIGATION HAS BEEN FILED, PLEASE PROVIDE THE CASE NUMBER IF KNOWN.

IF APPLICABLE, PLEASE PROVIDE THE NAME OF YOUR LEGAL COUNSEL AND LEGAL COUNSEL’S LAW FIRM.

Modified December 2019



5/2/25, 2:19 PM (No new emails) - cityofseligman@yahoo.com - Yahoo Mail

From: SunshineComplaint <SunshineComplaint@ago.mo.gov>
Sent: Thursday, May 1, 2025 10:56:58 AM
To: Seligman Officials <officials@seligmanmo.com>

Subject: FW: New submission from Sunshine Law Complaint Form

Good morning —

The Missouri Attorney General's Office has received two Sunshine Law complaints regarding the City of Seligman’s regular meeting held on April 14t 2025, at
6:00PM. The complaints allege that an Alderman repeatedly discussed items that were not included on the posted tentative agenda for that meeting.

Please note that the Attorney General's Office does not represent either party to this matter. Our role is to review allegations of noncompliance with Missouri’s
Sunshine Law (Chapter 610, RSMo) and ensure public governmental bodies are adhering to the transparency obligations imposed by law.

To assist in reviewing this complaint and providing all parties an opportunity to be heard, we respectfully request that the City provide the following information by
May 9th, 2025.

1. Awritten response addressing the allegations within the complaints (the complaints and supporting documentation have been attached to this email).

Under RSMo 610.020, the tentative agenda must be constructed in a manner to advise the public of the matters to be considered. This inquiry is not a finding of
violation, but part of our responsibility to determine whether further review is necessary.

Thank you for your attention to this matter and your continued commitment to open and accountable government. If additional time is needed to respond, please
notify me directly.

Thank you,

Brandon Roberts | Director of Sunshine Law Outreach
Missouri Attorney General’s Office

207 West High Street

Jefferson City, MO 65101

(573) 751-9405

Brandon.Roberts@ago.mo.gov

From: AGO Website <Noreply@ago.mo.gov>

Sent: Thursday, May 1, 2025 10:17 AM

To: SunshineComplaint <SunshineComplaint@ago.mo.gov>
Subject: New submission from Sunshine Law Complaint Form

Your Contact Information
Name
Brian Nichols

Address

27947 Walnut St.
Seligman, MO 65745
Map It

County
Barry

Primary Phone Number
4173426554

Email

brian.nichols@seligmanmo.com
Public Body Information

Public Body Name
City of Seligman
Address

29144 Main Street
Seligman, MO 65745
Map It

County
Barry
Phone

4176623600

https://mail.yahoo.com/n/list/folders=1&listFilter=ALL _INBOX/messages/1165467?.src=ym&reason=novation 1/2


mailto:Brandon.Roberts@ago.mo.gov
http://url6971.ago.mo.gov/ls/click?upn=u001.WQ6Drkz-2BGEn2ynBJ5-2FtlamR567lSV7SPlMbPMF9rcXrQ1hCW2kNcALc866NVlqUEOs4c5LegcjOFa85k7RWA1Lm6sLP-2B7bqogH8rIVnVFac-3DVvqA_PG3CrGj0Dx7Mtfnm2vFHSU89HAe89b842xTtqqMJ9B1ES6kkwa5OMa1jrD8-2Brg1hFh-2FK07-2FXuR1OQXE8hkpKf3G1oULD4ijk1BFZvRIfsAd4vO0rSLxd0nB5Z6ptYLFgGZeIJGX2eUTT01p-2F8dnoVmws0YTs8JxD6cBl81jhuz6UCBpudOPosZRJtV6sMvR-2Fi3GeE5rIjRR3uzg3Lf9pH7ATEZJRQeGsj4Lk3-2BsIDmA-3D
mailto:brian.nichols@seligmanmo.com
http://url6971.ago.mo.gov/ls/click?upn=u001.WQ6Drkz-2BGEn2ynBJ5-2FtlamR567lSV7SPlMbPMF9rcXpLnE7PQRTdxRCdBOZzay-2BkxVoFdC7N-2B-2Fz8MFjJkAi-2FvNIWPkLYwz9T-2FjeYuEzN-2BEY-3D9TwN_PG3CrGj0Dx7Mtfnm2vFHSU89HAe89b842xTtqqMJ9B1ES6kkwa5OMa1jrD8-2Brg1hFh-2FK07-2FXuR1OQXE8hkpKf8-2F8VIJETZSpE-2BqwHqGc611Wgd-2BAHo9-2BGBTPIcUhLqrnAT32gqYRJnyDpcv8Cxbb9NeITYFhK0QlQrHGfUUW3OSAmXoX966fp91aqUKkdpiXkH3DHHLLmToYUWcBO1zxd787G3LLsTaaKK438JcZ9rc-3D

5/2/25, 2:19 PM (No new emails) - cityofseligman@yahoo.com - Yahoo Mail
Email
officials@seligmanmo.com
Contact Person
Michael Avers
Attorney for Public Body (if known)
Sarah Weber
Complaint Details
Nature of Complaint
Meeting

Description of Complaint (Be as detailed as possible)

Alderman Lamb kept discussing items that were not on the agenda at the regular meeting on April 14th at 6pm. The attached minutes have been reviewed by the Mayor for accuracy, but they
have not been approved yet. Also attached is my personal recap of the meeting with greater detail after reviewing the video footage of the meeting, which is available.
| know our Chief of Police Matt Phillips also filed a complaint earlier today.

File Upload: Please upload any supporting documentation

e BrianRecapLetter.pdf
® MeetingNotice.pdf
® 41425MinutesDRAFT.pdf

Have you contacted a private or prosecuting attorney on this matter?
Yes
If yes, has the attorney taken action on your behalf?
No
This email message, including the attachments, is from the Missouri Attorney General’s Office. It is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and

privileged information, including that covered by § 32.057, RSMo. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please
contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message. Thank you.

https://mail.yahoo.com/n/list/folders=1&listFilter=ALL _INBOX/messages/1165467?.src=ym&reason=novation 2/2


mailto:officials@seligmanmo.com
http://url6971.ago.mo.gov/ls/click?upn=u001.WQ6Drkz-2BGEn2ynBJ5-2FtlagBxc7A19cuSqiLxaFqG1-2FXi00hMpIMtBrd5IcqPDRCjpHjztUaoyzpnB37YK75cwOtRFy4rEA2CnAU2bNLAoSUU41QdaaNOs0G3Khgk1uHXE6pxn1hDLFlV0RoEirK2qO-2FUYY4Usf-2Fqhcn4kXvotIF7i9LJYR3Y41g-2F9o8Sa1SSjTtWR7GauGQ4-2FruHq-2FHW32e6qvrPv0-2Brad32hlJmz30-3DAfNc_PG3CrGj0Dx7Mtfnm2vFHSU89HAe89b842xTtqqMJ9B1ES6kkwa5OMa1jrD8-2Brg1hFh-2FK07-2FXuR1OQXE8hkpKf-2FwSnThzc8XMonSCmhLLPjZvGMxF5zXTnpcZdv4Uo1v-2FRVFgvZ8sCYSdivjB05rCj5iYhEEuie9IS-2FKbqYveSAZJqdsaZwzQlXU0Se7IzQsP18GHkl79LVCXKknTS7Hp5eE7lUdhytNYEu6hlwMaDww-3D
http://url6971.ago.mo.gov/ls/click?upn=u001.WQ6Drkz-2BGEn2ynBJ5-2FtlagBxc7A19cuSqiLxaFqG1-2FXi00hMpIMtBrd5IcqPDRCjRgQ5AW7ly7DG3YNH7hYtEcclP1ss1xaJG2v2njAY2WPskoStKB-2FGocu24zII-2BtsPmDFQR9kneMmmk0tJ-2FAeC-2ByxIhFeAvYdp3aEqv14phKpEZSjRsU0lTaYN-2B4UAyXs3qWURDKu-2B1yVOWJYs1lQgn2s-2Fl-2FbHzBvdjdkskjDhGg4-3DknBd_PG3CrGj0Dx7Mtfnm2vFHSU89HAe89b842xTtqqMJ9B1ES6kkwa5OMa1jrD8-2Brg1hFh-2FK07-2FXuR1OQXE8hkpKf-2FqMTpIwaMm7RbhRYPFOsX6Uyf5IzY9LTM48CUKduYOIi6E75tYfl5YTIhvUJy0rMPtJneezKQrBIpMBvqETjX3-2B-2B8kUxm4iEHyBqKDD1pWFLvnaI-2Bu3jet-2FwASKkYydS8HuTPHVINIJHLDA-2FSmSjy4-3D
http://url6971.ago.mo.gov/ls/click?upn=u001.WQ6Drkz-2BGEn2ynBJ5-2FtlagBxc7A19cuSqiLxaFqG1-2FXi00hMpIMtBrd5IcqPDRCjymyJZOlsg1ZL3lPtUs-2BlXfyyRzoqt4n5ywh831OL3iqZRZwXJxDgbbeQDuLb1VmJiCt-2BHfIDP-2F4mNqRJttpf3lVG6T42w-2BeyEkp9tJpxR8vAtxRmzupqAjl4704hhMnK9Wjq85pt7UC4-2Fb0hlffbO-2BO0YrdC9Gy1fR-2Fj-2BDrxqdU-3DEoYV_PG3CrGj0Dx7Mtfnm2vFHSU89HAe89b842xTtqqMJ9B1ES6kkwa5OMa1jrD8-2Brg1hFh-2FK07-2FXuR1OQXE8hkpKf8PVsElhGzfByewCQiSGmoElylF9Fu-2FWVmDyWI72R8X0qEH7S6Cu2TKAgIKxEUcT2IVNTIutme5AoAW16mlxRxBJiBs8TTWxkiFddYu9yLJov2Eq2wGVuJufV5i55KQ92M9f7t5IWV8VR7szbQWXfb8-3D

Bill: 586 City of Seligman Ordinance: 22-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SELIGMAN, MISSOURI, TO ESTABLISH A
PROCEDURE TO DISCLOSE POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND
SUBSTANTIALINTERESTS FOR CERTAIN OFFICIALS.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SELIGMAN,
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1 - Declaration of Policy

The proper operation of government requires that public officials and employees be independent,
impartial and responsible to the people; that government decisions and policy be made in the
proper channels of the governmental structure; that public office not be used for personal gain;
and that the public have confidence in the integrity of its government. In recognition of these
goals, there is hereby established a procedure for disclosure by certain officials and employees of
private financial or other interests in matters affecting the political subdivision.

Section 2 - Conflicts of Interest

a. All elected and appointed officials as well as employees of a political subdivision must
comply with conflict of interest statutes under Chapter 105 of the Missouri Revised
Statutes as well as any other state law governing official conduct.

b. Any member of the governing body of a political subdivision who has a “substantial
personal or private interest” in any measure, bill, order or ordinance proposed or
pending before such governing body must disclose that interest to the secretary or
clerk of such body and such disclosure shall be recorded in the appropriate journal of
the governing body. Substantial personal or private interest is defined as ownership by
the individual, his spouse, or his dependent children, whether singularly or
collectively, directly or Please take note - the minimum requirements outlined in
statute for an ordinance do not include penalties. Any penalties that the subdivision is
authorized to enforce should be established by the ordinance. Upon adopting the
ordinance, the political subdivision becomes responsible for enforcing the ordinance
and any penalties. All candidates must file a Financial Interest Statement for Political
Subdivisions if they have any transactions over $500 with the political subdivision,
even if candidates are not listed specifically in the ordinance. If candidates do not have
any transactions, consult ordinance for filing requirements. Review the ordinance prior
to adoption to ensure it includes all of the aspects desired by the political subdivision.
indirectly of: (1) 10% or more of any business entity; or (2) an interest having a value
of $10,000 or more; or (3) the receipt of a salary, gratuity, or other compensation or
remuneration of $5,000 or more, per year from any individual, partnership,
organization, or association within any calendar year.

Section 3 — Disclosure Reports
Each elected official, candidate for elective office, the chief administrative officer, the chief
purchasing officer, and the full-time general counsel shall disclose the following information by
May 1, or the appropriate deadline as referenced in Section 105.487 RSMo, if any such
transactions occurred during the previous calendar year:
a. For such person, and all persons within the first degree of consanguinity or affinity of
such person, the date and the identities of the parties to each transaction with a total value

Page 1 of 3



Bill: 586 City of Seligman Ordinance: 22-01

in excess of five hundred dollars, if any, that such person had with the political
subdivision, other than compensation received as an employee or payment of any tax, fee
or penalty due to the political subdivision, and other than transfers for no consideration to
the political subdivision.

b. The date and the identities of the parties to each transaction known to the person with a

total value in excess of five hundred dollars, if any, that any business entity in which

such person had a substantial interest, had with the political subdivision, other than
payment of any tax, fee or penalty due to the political subdivision or transactions
involving payment for providing utility service to the political subdivision, and other than
transfers for no consideration to the political subdivision.

c. The chief administrative officer, chief purchasing officer, and candidates for either of
these positions also shall disclose by May 1, or the appropriate deadline as referenced in
Section 105.487, RSMo., the following information for the previous calendar year:

1. The name and address of each of the employers of such person from whom
income of one thousand dollars or more was received during the year covered by
the statement;

2. The name and address of each sole proprietorship that he owned; the name
address and the general nature of the business conducted of each general
partnership and joint venture in which he was a partner or participant; the name
and address of each partner or coparticipant for each partnership or joint venture
unless such names and addresses are filed by the partnership or joint venture with
the secretary of state; the name, address and general nature of the business
conducted of any closely held corporation or limited partnership in which the
person owned ten percent or more of any class of the outstanding stock or limited
partnership units; and the name of any publicly traded corporation or limited
partnership that is listed on a regulated stock exchange or automated quotation
system in which the person owned two percent or more of any class or
outstanding stock, limited partnership units or other equity interests;

3. The name and address of each corporation for which such person served in the
capacity of a director, officer, or receiver.

Section 4 — Filing of Reports
a. The financial interest statements shall be filed at the following times, but no person is
required to file more than one financial interest statement in any calendar year;

1. Every person required to file a financial interest statement shall file the
statement annually not later than May 1 and the statement shall cover the
calendar year ending the immediately preceding December 31; provided that any
member of the Board of Aldermen may supplement the financial interest
statement to report additional interests acquired after December 310f the covered
year until the date of filing of the financial interest statement.

2. Each person appointed to office shall file the statement within thirty days of such
appointment or employment covering the calendar year ending the previous
December 31;

3. Every candidate required to file a personal financial disclosure statement shall
file no later than fourteen days after the close of filing at which the candidate
seeks nomination or election or nomination by caucus. The time period of this

Page 2 of 3



Bill: 586 City of Seligman

Ordinance: 22-01

statement shall cover the twelve months prior to the closing date of filing for

candidacy.

b. Financial disclosure reports giving the financial information required in Section 3 shall
be filed with the local political subdivision and with the Missouri Ethics Commission.
The reports shall be available for public inspection and copying during normal business

hours.

Section 5 — Filing of Ordinance

A certified copy of the ordinance, adopted prior to September 15th, shall be sent within ten days

of its adoption to the Missouri Ethics Commission.

Section 6 — Effective Date

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and approval

and shall remain in effect for two years from the date of passage.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the following vote:

W) [

Michael Avers, Mayor

ATTEST

BrianV"leichols, City Clerk

To approve Bill # | ; y(ﬂ

1% Reading 2" Reading
Motioned (_OU S }'u(l Motioned )-‘udme S
Seconded H\U\S\MJ ¢ Seconded (Lo

Aye Nay Aye
Lovstad L/ Lovstad L
Corn — Corn v
Hughes ,4 Hughes v
Absent Absent

I

Page 3 of 3



BILLNO. 41§ ORDINANCENO. | S-O 7

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING A HARASSMENT AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY
FOR THE EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF SELIGMAN

WHEREAS, the City of Seligman requires a Harassment and Sexual Harassment Policy for its
employees;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF SELIGMAN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City of Seligman adopts the following as its Harassment and Sexual
Harassment Policy:

CITY OF SELIGMAN HARASSMENT AND SEXUAL
HARASSMENT POLICY

Policy Statement: ‘

(i) The purpose of this policy is to set forth clear and consistent guidelines for defining and
handling cases of Harassment and Sexual Harassment involving City employees. Through
implementation of this Policy, the City intends to provide a harassment-free and sexual
harassment-free working environment for its employees, and thereby enhance the ability of City
employees to deliver safe and efficient service to the community.

(ii) All City employees are expected to treat others with dignity and respect. The City does not
tolerate harassment of job applicants, employees, vendors, citizens, or anyone else.

Definitions:

(i) Harassment is the making of any submission to or rejection of any slurs, jokes, or other
verbal, graphic, or physical conduct either directly to, about, or generally regarding any one
person or group of persons protected under this policy as the basis of any employment-related
decision or action, or the creating of an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment
by such conduct. The list of conduct is not exhausted and may include other actions, whether
physical, verbal, or graphic.

(ii) Sexual Harassment is any unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and any
other verbal and physical conduct of a sexual nature toward someone of any gender or gender
identity by someone of the same sex or opposite sex.

(iii) City employees include any current City employee, job applicants, vendors, citizens,
independent contractors completing work for the City, the Mayor, the City Attorney, the City
Judge, and the members of the Board of Aldermen.



Policy Against Harassment Generally:

Any form of harassment related to an employee's race, color, sex (same sex or opposite
sex), gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, pregnancy, religion, national origin, ancestry,
age, citizenship status, physical or mental disability, veteran status, or any other basis protected
by federal, state, or local laws, will not be tolerated and is a violation of this policy. Any
violation of this policy is punishable under the Disciplinary Action section of this policy.

Policy Against Sexual Harassment:
(i) Sexual harassment of any form or nature will not be tolerated.
(ii) Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and any other verbal, graphic,
and/or physical conduct of a sexual nature may constitute sexual harassment when:
(1) Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition
of an individual's employment;
(2) Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for
employment decisions or actions affecting such individual; or
(3) Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work
environment.
(iii) This policy is gender-neutral. This policy includes conduct by someone against another of
the opposite sex as well as conduct by someone against another of the same sex.
(iv) Examples of sexual harassment may include (This list is not exhausted and may include
other forms or types of sexual harassment):
(1) Verbal harassment, including sexual remarks and sexually derogatory comments or
slurs;
(2) Visual harassment, including sexually derogatory posters, cartoons, drawings, etc.;
(3) Physical interference with normal work or movement; or
(4) Unwelcome sexual touching or advances.
(v)Any violation of this policy is punishable under the Disciplinary Action section of this policy.

Procedures for Reporting Harassment:
(i) If a City employee feels as though he or she is being harassed based upon his or her race,
color, sex (same sex or opposite sex), gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, pregnancy,
religion, national origin, age, citizenship status, physical or mental disability, veteran status, or
any other basis protected by federal, state, or local laws, the City employee must give the City
notice in one of the following ways:
(1) Written or Oral notice to his or her supervisor;
(2) Written or Oral notice to the Mayor;
(3) Written notice to the Board of Aldermen requesting a conference to discuss the
complaint if:
(A) Neither (1) nor (2) above are comfortable alternatives for the City employee;
or :
(B) The City employee is not satisfied with the investigation and potential
disciplinary action taken after notice to either (1) or (2) above.




(ii) Any City employee who witnesses, has personal knowledge of, or becomes aware of any
harassment of an employee by either a supervisor, subordinate, co-worker, or non-employee
should report the harassment by either:

(1) Written or Oral Notice to his or her immediate supervisor

(2) Written or Oral Notice to the Mayor.

Investigation:

Any reports of harassment or sexual harassment by either an individual citizen
complaining of harassment or sexual harassment or by any City employee who has reported
harassment or sexual harassment will be investigated upon receipt.

Disciplinary Action:

Upon completion of the investigation, disciplinary action may be taken where
appropriate. Disciplinary action may include suspension, loss of vacation time, termination, or
any other appropriate action.

Non-Retaliation Policy:

Employees who bring complaints under these harassment policies or who assist in any
investigation will not, as a result of bringing such complaint or assisting in any investigation, be
adversely affected in the terms and conditions of their employment.

Application of this Policy:

This policy applies not only to actions between supervisors and subordinates, but also to
actions between coworkers. Harassment of City employees, in connection with their work, by
non-employees also may violate this policy. Appropriate action will be taken with respect to
violation of this policy by any non-employee.

Disclaimer of Knowledge:

City employees are not to assume that the City is aware of any current or past
harassment. It is the City employees’ responsibility to report incidents occurring against an
individual employee or group of employees, that an employee has witnessed, or that an employee
has knowledge about, even if the harassment is not occurring against the employee directly.

SECTION 2. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval.

Read two times and passed by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Seligman, Missouri this /]

day of Many ,2015. |
Py

Robért Hughes; ayo{' Pro Tem




ATTEST

Brusier /ﬁa%fﬁ

City Clerk

2 .
m W
SUTITITIINN

BE IT REMEMBERED that the above Ordinance was adopted upon its third reading by

the following votes:

ALDERMAN  Avews VOTES //
v
ALDERMAN (o7~ VOTES /
%
ALDERMAN Hw; nes VOTES /
J )
ALDERMAN Mgy lne VOTES //

J



5/5/25 MEETING MINUTES-DRAFT
EsL. H;:]; ¥ ‘A\ /

i

Present Aldermen Lamb (Webex Attendance), McKinney, Pratt and Tanis. Mayor Avers, Brian

Nichols, Matt Phillips (webex), Neal Stanley, Harrison Pratt, Brenda Mcllvain, Jeanne Raphael and
Husband, Clifford Ferguson

Call to Order 6:30pm

Agenda

Employee Complaints / Grievance Received against West Ward Alderman Michael Lamb (this is the
second attempt for this meeting) - Mayor Avers proceeded to read all of the statements, complaints,
grievances and letters received from Brian Nichols and Matthew Phillips, all provided in the council pack.
Mayor Avers asked Lamb for a response after reading everything, he responded with "The accusations
and allegations are a legal matter that need to be addressed by the City attorney for course of action
and guidance so that we know how to properly address this".

Attorney General response to complaints received 5/1/25 - Mayor Avers asked everyone to provide a
letter in response to be sent.

During this time Clifford Ferguson from the audience raised his hand and Mayor Avers acknowledged
him, he asked questions about the Board of Adjustments and de-annexatien-disincorporation, Mayor
Avers said his questions had nothing to do with the meeting and moved on.

Call for the impeachment of Alderman Michael Lamb with Board vote per RSMo 79.240.
Motion to proceed with the articles of impeachment and seek special counsel. McKinney, Second Tanis,
Aye Tanis and McKinney, Nay Lamb and Pratt, Mayor Avers broke the tie with a yay vote.

Adjourn - Motion to Adjourn at 7:26pm - Motion McKinney, Second Tanis, Aye McKinney, Tanis, Pratt No
vote by Lamb recorded

Corrected 6/10/25 BWN

May 5th 2025 Special



	May5-2025SpecialCouncilPacket
	MaySpecial
	Combined
	1_BrianStatementofEvents
	2_LambOath
	3_LambResignation
	4_LambWithdrawl
	5_LambResponse
	6_EthicsComplaintSubmitted
	7_Lamb Grievance
	8_MeetingRecap4142025
	9_ChiefLetter
	10_AttorneyGeneralComplaint
	11_AttorneyGeneralResponse
	ConflictofInterestPolicy
	HarassmentPolicy


	May5-2025SpecialMeetingMinutes

	INDIVIDUAL BRINGING COMPLAINT must be a natural person: 
	DATE OF COMPLAINT: 3/16/25
	NAME First  Last: Brian Nichols
	TITLE OF OFFICE HELD OR SOUGHT if applicable: 
	ADDRESS required: 27947 Walnut Street
	EMAIL: bwnathome@gmail.com
	CITY STATE  ZIP required: Seligman, MO 65745
	COUNTY: Barry
	WORK PHONE: 
	HOME PHONE: 
	CELL PHONE: 4173426554
	NAME: Michael Lamb
	TITLE OF OFFICE HELD OR SOUGHT if applicable_2: West Ward Alderman
	ADDRESS required_2: 27975 Main Street
	EMAIL_2: 
	CITY STATE  ZIP required_2: Seligman, MO 65745
	COUNTY_2: Barry
	DATE OF ELECTION if applicable: April 2024
	WORK PHONE_2: 
	HOME PHONE_2: 
	CELL PHONE_2: 7274219289
	NAME_2: 
	TITLE OF OFFICE HELD OR SOUGHT if applicable_3: 
	ADDRESS required_3: 
	EMAIL_3: 
	CITY STATE  ZIP required_3: 
	COUNTY_3: 
	DATE OF ELECTION if applicable_2: 
	WORK PHONE_3: 
	HOME PHONE_3: 
	CELL PHONE_3: 
	COUNTY OF: Barry
	I: Brian Nichols
	Subscribed and sworn to before me this: 
	day of: 
	undefined: 
	My Commission Expires: 
	undefined_2: NO
	If yes please provide the county: 
	and case number: 
	1_2: Full report and more attached. Video footage of each meeting is available.
	2_2: In breif, Alderman Lamb's building permit request was in violation of City Code.
	3_2: First Lamb contacted the Mayor about the permit issues in an attempt 
	4_2: to overrule the zoning administrator decision on a building permit, second was to enlist
	5_2: another Alderman to discuss the matter with the Mayor and attempt to persuade the 
	6_2: Mayor to violate City code, City code is clear that an appeal goes to the Board of Adjustments. 
	7_2: Lamb also threatened to investigate employee actions and his finding would blow back on the Mayor.
	8: Lamb requested to be on the agenda at the planning and zoning commission which 
	9: he was a member, he was appointed by the Board of Alderman to hold the Alderman
	10: seat, he started off discussing his building permit that had not yet been approved, he
	11: attempted to persuade the zoning commission to make changes to the code immediately
	12: so he could put up his new building the next day. He argued that the zoning board
	13: could make a motion to change the code issues and the Mayor could sign them into
	14: law, he was told multiple times that the zoning commission has nothing to do with the
	15: matter, and code cannot be changed quickly enough to resolve his conflict.
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Yes
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box7: Yes


